
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, March 20, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Ulysses Brewer 

Pledge of Allegiance given by Animal Care and Adoption Center Director Lenor Teague 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Comprehensive Plan presentation given by Juliet Richey with Garver. (Admin) 

CONSENT 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 6, 2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

3. Adopt a Resolution approving the Legal Services Agreement with City Attorney Joshua 

Potter. (BOD) Mayor Allen Brown 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an engineering contract with 

A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., for the road improvement design of County Avenue. (PWD) 

Public Works Director Tyler Richards 



 

5. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction contract with 

Francis Excavating, LLC., for rehabilitation projects on Sanderson Lane, Jefferson Avenue, 

Stallion Drive, and Boyd Road. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

6. Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Crossties. 

(ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

7. Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with 1894, LLC., 

and Heritage, Heart & Arts. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

8. Adopt an Ordinance to delete obsolete Ordinance No. L-227. (This item was TABLED 

03/06/2023) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

9. Adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 24 – Subdivisions of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

Code of Ordinances, to set limits on road guarantee renewals. (This item was TABLED 

03/06/2023) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

10. Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to purchase desktop computers, laptop 

computers, and their necessary accessories to be utilized by various departments of the City 

of Texarkana Arkansas. (TWU-IT) Information Technology Director Brandon Uselton 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, April 3, 2023 

ADJOURN 

2023 City Calendar 

Bike Night/Fundraiser – Thursday, March 23rd – 5PM – 2AM 

Texarkana TOGA – 525 E. Broad Street - April 13th – 16th – 6AM – 2PM 

Centennial Time Capsule/Sesquicentennial Festival – Downtown – April 14th – 15th 

Penni's Purpose - Saturday, April 15th - 10AM - 8PM  

Cinco De Mayo - Saturday, May 6th - 4PM - 2AM 

Be Like CJ 5K - Saturday, May 20th - 7:30AM - 10:30PM 

Sesquicentennial Ball – July 8th 

Founders’ Week Celebration – December 4th – 10th 

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 6, 2023.  (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: March 20, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, March 06, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Assistant Mayor Ward 1 Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney 

Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director 

Danny Jewell, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Jay Ellington, Interim City Attorney Joshua Potter, City Clerk 

Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens.  

Invocation given by Mayor Allen Brown. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by TWU Executive Director Gary Smith. 

Mayor Brown said he was instructed by the Interim City Attorney Item 4. Public Hearing 

concerning a Resolution of support for a request to be made to the Arkansas Highway Department 

(ARDOT) asking that the Highway 71S viaduct be named the Reverend Londell Williams 

Overpass, would be tabled tonight due to another request to consider an additional name. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

No one came forward. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

2. Presentation of the proposed Municipal Auditorium HVAC System. (Admin) City Manager 

E. Jay Ellington 

PUBLIC HEARING 

3. Public Hearing concerning an Ordinance to rename a section of right of way that was cut off 

by Interstate 49 from Preston Street to Magee Drive. (Ward 3) (PWD-Planning) City Planner 

Mary Beck 

NO ACTION to be taken by the Board of Directors at this meeting.  

This ordinance would be presented to the Board of Directors as an ACTION ITEM on March 

20, 2023. 

Mayor Brown opened the Public Hearing. 



 

City Planner Mary Beck gave a brief presentation regarding the renaming of the road.  

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this item.   

No one came forward. 

Mayor Brown closed the Public Hearing. 

4. *TABLED* Public Hearing concerning a Resolution of support for a request to be made to 

the Arkansas Highway Department (ARDOT) asking that the Highway 71S viaduct be named 

the Reverend Londell Williams Overpass. (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

NO ACTION to be taken by the Board of Directors at this meeting. 

This resolution would be presented to the Board of Directors as an ACTION ITEM on March 

20, 2023. 

CONSENT 

Director Harris made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Roberts.  The motion carried and the following items were approved: 

5. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting February 21, 2023.  (CCD) City 

Clerk Heather Soyars 

6. Resolution No. 2023-16 approved the reimbursement of $14,000.00 to the Texarkana 

Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda 

Henderson  

7. Resolution No. 2023-17 authorized the City Manager to purchase one (1) M2-106 Freightliner 

Conventional Cab. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith 

8. Resolution No. 2023-18 authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with Plummer 

Associates, Inc., to develop a Master Plan of the water distribution system serving the Cities 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, and Texarkana, Texas. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith 

REGULAR 

9. Resolution No. 2023-19 accepted the 2022 Public Facilities Board Annual Report. (Admin) 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Brewer.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

10. Ordinance No. 8-2023 authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with Springbrook 

Software for the purchase of financial software. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Harris. 



 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

 

11. *TABLED* Adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 24 – Subdivisions of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances, to delete Ordinance No. L-227 permanently and 

set limits on road guarantee renewals. (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

After a brief discussion, the motion to table the ordinance made by Director Harris, Seconded by 

Director Jewell. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  



 

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance tabled. 

 

12. Ordinance No. 9-2023 rezoned a tract of land located at 4000 E. 9th Street, from R-2 Single-

family residential to C-3 Open display commercial zoning in order to build a retail business. 

(Ward 3) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Harris asked when the City would get more asphalt for potholes.  He also wanted to 

know if the street sweeper worked. 

Director Hollibush said last Thursday night there was a community meeting regarding Tri-State 

Iron and Metal, and it was a huge success.    

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington gave the following report: 

 He said he continued to work on his project list. 



 

 He said he was having a series of exit interviews with the staff as well as the Board. 

 He was working on a letter to give to the employees regarding the City’s health benefits. 

 He stated his last day in the office would be March 21, 2023.   

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session at 6:41 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:07 PM, and the following action was taken: 

Motion to appoint Joshua Potter as the new City Attorney made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, 

Seconded by Director Hart.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, March 20, 2023 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Hart.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:09 PM. 

APPROVED this the 20th day of March 2023. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the Legal Services Agreement with City 

Attorney Joshua Potter. (BOD) Mayor Allen Brown 

AGENDA DATE: March 20, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Approve legal services agreement with City Attorney Joshua Potter. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Joshua Potter has been Interim City Attorney since February 1, 2023 and 

was appointed City Attorney at the March 6, 2023 Board of Directors’ 

meeting. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: EnterText 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: EnterText 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

EnterText 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Request for Proposals, Legal Services Agreement 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Arkansas Code Annotated § 19-11-803, 

804, and 805, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, has issued a Request for Proposals for Legal 

Services for the purpose of procuring the professional services of an attorney to serve as 

General Counsel for the City; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the above-referenced Request for Proposals for Legal 

Services is attached hereto and made a part hereof; and  

 WHEREAS, Joshua L. Potter, of the Law Firm Potter & Marks, P.L.L.C. was 

appointed interim City Attorney on February 6, 2023, and Mr. Potter has applied for the 

position of General Counsel for the City by submitting his proposal for legal services; and  

 WHEREAS, on March 6, 2023, the City Board of Directors voted unanimously to 

retain Joshua L. Potter as its General Counsel; and 

 WHEREAS, an authorized representative of the City Board of Directors has 

negotiated with Mr. Potter with respect to his performance of the duties of General Counsel 

which duties are set forth in the attached Request for Proposal for Legal Services; and 

 WHEREAS, an authorized representative of the City Board of Directors and Mr. 

Potter have reached a satisfactory Legal Services Agreement under which Mr. Potter has 

agreed to serve as General Counsel for the City for a monthly fee of $6,667.00 to be paid 

by the City; and   

 WHEREAS, the Legal Services Agreement will begin April 1, 2023; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that Joshua L. Potter, of the Law Firm Potter & Marks, P.L.L.C. 

be and is hereby selected to serve as General Counsel for the City for a monthly fee of 

$6,667.00 effective April 1, 2023.   



 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   

 

 

       ______________________________ 

              Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



1 

 

LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, herein referred to as “the City”, and Joshua Potter, Attorney at Law, 117 East 

Broad Street, Texarkana, Arkansas 71854, herein referred as “Potter”, as follows: 

1) Potter agrees to provide legal services required by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

including the following: 

a) Provide legal services on a day-to-day basis to the elected and appointed 

officials of the City on all legal matters related to the successful operation 

of municipal government except legal services otherwise provided pursuant 

to any policies of insurance carried from time to time by the City, or 

municipal bond attorneys required in connection with City bond issues and 

operation of district court and appeals therefrom; 

b) Attend and provide legal counsel and direction at all City Board of 

Directors’ meetings, and when requested by the Mayor or Board of 

Directors, City Manager staff meetings and other City meetings when 

required by the Mayor; 

c) Provide litigation services for the City, filing and defending cases for the 

City in court or before administrative tribunals; 

d) Develop all Ordinances and Resolutions required for each Board of 

Directors’ meeting; and 

e) Provide secretarial support, stationary supplies, and all lawbooks and 

materials necessary to meet the City’s legal needs. 

 

2) Potter will be responsible for legal services to the City and will carry the title “City 

General Counsel.”  Potter will attend City Board of Directors’ meetings, but in the 

event of his absence, Potter will arrange to have a suitable replacement in 

attendance, it being understood that the City Prosecuting Attorney will perform 

replacement services upon reasonable and timely request. 



2 

 

3) Potter will perform all such legal services for the sum of $_______ per month, or 

such other sum as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties and approved by 

resolution of the City Board.  Such monthly payments will be made by the City to 

Potter between the first and tenth of each month following the performance of such 

services. 

 

4) Should the City be involved in litigation in which the court directs that the opposing 

party pay attorney’s fees and cost to the City as the prevailing party in such 

litigation, the City, after collecting such sum and deducting all expended court costs 

and other litigation expenses except the monthly fees paid to Potter, will pay to 

Potter and remaining attorney’s fees as extra compensation for the extra work and 

successful performance of Potter in such litigation. 

 

5) Potter will make no charges for any legal services except for the services provided 

for in Paragraphs 3) and 4) above; however, the City will pay or reimburse Potter 

for court costs, deposition costs, travel expenses, copy expenses, long-distance 

telephone calls, and other charges on City legal matters which extend beyond the 

ordinary office expenses of Potter. 

 

6) This Agreement shall continue until terminated by either the City or Potter.  It is 

agreed that, pursuant to the Arkansas Rules of Professional Conduct and the rules 

and decisions of the Arkansas Supreme Court regarding the attorney-client 

relationship, the Legal Services Agreement may be terminated by the city at any 

time, with or without cause, with the City to pay only for legal services performed 

up to the date of the termination of such relationship. 

 

7) Potter agrees that he will handle all legal services and all litigation for the City 

(except matters involving municipal bond issues which are to be handled by the 

City’s municipal bond attorneys or matters for which counsel is provided pursuant 



3 

 

to applicable policy of insurance or the like) without the employment of any outside 

attorney unless there is a conflict of interest which cannot be resolved and which, 

under the Arkansas Rules of Professional conduct and the rules and decisions of 

the Arkansas Supreme Court, Potter is prohibited from representing the City.  It is 

expected that any such disqualification of Potter will rarely, if ever, occur; however, 

if such conflict of interest does occur, Potter will assist the Board of Directors in 

obtaining independent outside counsel at a reasonable rate to handle such matter 

for which the firm is disqualified. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023. 

 

JOSHUA POTTER 

117 East Broad Street 

Texarkana, Arkansas 71854 

 THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

216 Walnut Street 

Texarkana, Arkansas 71854 

 

 

 

  

   

Joshua Potter  Allen Brown, Mayor 

   

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

   

  Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 

engineering contract with A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., for the road 

improvement design of County Avenue. (PWD) Public Works Director 

Tyler Richards 

AGENDA DATE: 03/20/2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: To Award an Engineering Contract to A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., for 

the design of County Avenue Road Improvements. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The City allocated funding in the FY2023 Budget for improvements to 

County Avenue.  In order to put the project out to bid a design a bid book 

is needed. 

The City submitted a RFQ in June 2022, for engineers, architects and 

surveyors.  A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., was selected as a qualified 

engineer for City projects based on their qualifications and extensive 

work history with the City.  

A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., submitted their design fee proposal for 

these projects in the amount of $47,440.00. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $47,440.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $750,000.00 (Public Works Budget Dept. 149) 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval of the engineering contract 

to A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, County Ave Photo, and Street Projects Fee Schedule  

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, issued a Request for Qualifications 

in June 2022, for engineers, architects, and surveyors to provide engineering services for 

road improvements to County Avenue; and 

 WHEREAS, A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., submitted their design fee proposal 

for the project in the amount of $47,440.00; and  

 WHEREAS, A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., was selected as the best suited 

candidate based on their qualifications and extensive work history with the City; and  

 WHEREAS, funds are budgeted and available; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into an 

engineering contract with A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., for the road improvement design 

of County Avenue in the amount of $47,440.00.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

                 Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



 

South Bound Lane just south of E 43rd Street, severe rutting and failure of pavement 

 



 

Typical Section of County, Concrete Curb and Asphalt Pavement, patching has been performed 
numerous times. 

 

Southbound Lane south of 43rd Street has severe rutting and failure for a considerable distance. 



 

Northbound Lane near the Wal-Mart has vegetation, accumulation of sediment. Asphalt pavement in 
this area does not show rutting but rather normal cracking for the age of the pavement. 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

construction contract with Francis Excavating, LLC., for rehabilitation 

projects on Sanderson Lane, Jefferson Avenue, Stallion Drive, and Boyd 

Road. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

AGENDA DATE: March 20, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution to Enter into a Construction Contract with Francis 

Excavating, LLC for Sanderson Ln, Jefferson Ave, Stallion Dr and Boyd 

Rd Rehabilitation Projects. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: A resolution to award the construction contract to Francis Excavating, 

LLC., in the amount of one million, one hundred thirty-seven thousand, 

three hundred thirty-three dollars and sixty-six cents ($1,137,333.66) for 

rehabilitation projects on Sanderson Lane, Jefferson Avenue, Stallion 

Drive, and Boyd Road.    

The City solicited sealed bids on February 12th and February 19th, 2023. 

On Tuesday March 7, 2023, a bid opening was conducted at City Hall 

for the projects listed above. Three qualified bids were received that met 

the bidding requirements as listed below.  

Francis Excavating, LLC                        $1,137,333.66 

Contech Contractors Inc                         $1,359,584.11 

Tatum Excavating Company, Inc.          $1,359,400.00 

A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., reviewed the bids and found no errors in 

the submission. The low bid by Francis Excavating, LLC., was accepted 

by the Public Works Director to be submitted to the Board of Directors 

for approval.  

Francis Excavating, LLC., is licensed in the State of Arkansas and 

located in Nash, Texas. Francis Excavating, LLC., is very experienced 

and capable to complete the project.   

Award of this contract to Francis Excavating, LLC., meets all bidding 

requirements. Funds were budgeted and available. 



EXPENSE REQUIRED: $1,137,333.66  

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $1,400,000.00 (ARPA Funds) 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Bid Ads, Bid Tab & Engineer’s Recommendation. 

 

 

  

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, after advertisement a low bid in the amount of $1,137,333.66 was 

submitted by Francis Excavating, L.L.C., for the Sanderson Lane, Jefferson Avenue, 

Stallion Drive, and Boyd Road Rehabilitation Projects; and 

 WHEREAS, said low bid is within the amount budgeted and is available; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract 

with Francis Excavating, L.L.C., for the purposes and in the amount set forth above.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

              Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into an 

agreement with Crossties. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

AGENDA DATE: March 20, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Enter into an agreement with Crossties. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Enter into an agreement with Crossties. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and agreement. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, (The City) wishes to create an event 

venue inside Front Street Plaza Park for the enjoyment and benefit to its citizens; and 

 WHEREAS, Crossties, LLC., and Crossties of Texarkana, Inc., (Crossties) own 

property inside Front Street Plaza Park; and  

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of The City to enter into an agreement with Crossties 

to create an event venue consisting of Crossties properties and City properties; and  

 WHEREAS, the agreement between Crossties and The City provides for Crossties 

to allow The City unlimited use of its vacant lot behind the Crossties Indoor Event Venue 

and The City will allow Crossties to sell alcoholic beverages within the Front Street Plaza 

Park designated areas, in exchange for paying to The City 15% of total gross sales of all 

alcoholic beverages, among other terms and conditions; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement 

with Crossties for the purposes proposed and the terms contained in the attached 

agreement.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   

        

___________________________ 

              Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 
 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



























 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into an 

agreement with 1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts. (ADMIN) City 

Manager E. Jay Ellington 

AGENDA DATE: March 20, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Enter into an agreement with 1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Enter into an agreement with1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and agreement. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas (The City) wishes to create an event 

venue inside Front Street Plaza Park for the enjoyment and benefit to its citizens; and 

 WHEREAS, 1894, LLC., owns property and Heritage, Heart & Arts occupies a 

portion of said properties inside Front Street Plaza Park; and  

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of The City to enter into an agreement with 1894 and 

Heritage, Heart & Arts to create an event venue consisting of 1894, LLC., and Heritage, 

Heart & Arts properties and City properties; and  

 WHEREAS, the agreement between 1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts and 

The City provides for 1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts to sell alcoholic beverages 

within the Front Street Plaza Park, in exchange for paying to The City 15% of total gross 

sales of all alcoholic beverages, among other terms and conditions; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas that the City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement with 

1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts for the purposes proposed and the terms contained 

in the attached agreement.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   
 

   _____________________________ 

              Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 
 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 























 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to delete obsolete Ordinance No. L-227. (This item 

was TABLED 03/06/2023) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

AGENDA DATE: 03/20/2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to delete obsolete Ordinance L-227.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None requested. 

SUMMARY: (This item was TABLED 03/06/2023 – BOD wanted a separate 

ordinance for each request) 

An ordinance that was suspended has been found to be obsolete and the 

Planning Commission recommends deleting it to avoid confusion in 

records.         

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance.   

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, Ordinance L-227, Ordinance L-255. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE DELETING ORDINANCE NO.  

L-227 AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors, after public hearing, adopted Ordinance No. L-227 

on October 3, 2005, which granted the City new authority to regulate the subdivision of land into 

lots and blocks for development of residential, commercial, and industrial subdivisions by 

requiring that proposed subdivisions be analyzed in their relationship to existing adjacent 

subdivisions and that preservation of existing trees in proposed subdivisions be encouraged and 

mandated under certain circumstances; and 

 WHEREAS, on the 1st day of May 2006, the Board of Directors adopted Ordinance No. 

L-255 suspending the operation and implementation of Ordinance No. L-227 due to problems with 

respect to costs of implementing some of its provisions; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted workshops over the course of many 

months and concluded that Ordinance No. L-227 should be deleted in its entirety; and  

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing on February 13, 2023, voted 

5-0 with two commissioners absent, to approve the deletion of Ordinance No. L-227 in its entirety; 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Staff recommend approval; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that Ordinance No. L-277 is hereby deleted in its entirety.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   

 

      _____________________________ 

                Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, Interim City Attorney 



ORDINANCE NO. /v 2255

AN ORDINANCE TO SUSPEND THE OPERATION

AND IMPLEMENTATION OF ORDINANCE NO.
I nnn nu rmnnnnnvunv.

L-AAI; run nLunnunnLl; AND

FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2005. the Board of Directors of the City enacted

Ordinance No. granting the City new authority to regulate the subdivision of land

into 1015 and blocks for development of rcsidcmial, commercialv and industrial 

subdivisions by requiring that proposed subdivisions be analyzed in their relationship to

existing adjacent subdivisions and that preservation of existing trees in proposed

subdivisions be encouraged and mandated under certain circumslanccs; and

WHEREAS, problems have arisen with respect to the costs of implementing 

some of the provisions of Ordinance [.7227 which Call into question Lhe propriety of such

provisions; and 

WHEREAS, it is now to suspend for six months the operation and

implementation of Ordinance No. L-227 in its entirety in order to conduct further study

and further cumider the controversial provisions of this Ordinance referenced above; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors 0f the

City of Tcxarkana, Arkansas, as follows:

cu 1 M.m.;m .m

.. .m. vyvluuun auu ....P.w.u.muuu m ummauu. nu, um I: .mwy

suspended for a period of six monthsv

Section 2. This Ordinance being necessary for the preservation of the public

peace, health, and safety, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this Ordinance 

shall be in full force and effect fxom and after its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED this lst day of May. 2006.



Horace G Shipp, Mayor

ATTFRT-

gull: 
Scot! Grey, City Clerk 5; 3

City Attorney



ORDINANCE NO. A , 02 2 7

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 1,
SECTION 24-10 AND SECTIONS 24-13-19;
ARTICLE IV; SECTIONS THROUGH 24-85;
ARTICLE V, SECTION 24-98; ARTICLE VI,
SECTION 24-11; OF CHAPTER 24 (SUBDIVISION

REGULATIONS) OF THE CODE OF

ORDINANCES; ADDING REQUIRED
LANDSCAPED STRIPS AND/OR SCREENING

WALLS OR FENCES FOR SUBDIVISIONS

CONTAINING DOUBLE-FRONTAGE LOTS;
PROVIDING A LIST OF SUGGESTED PLANTING 

MATERIALS SUITED TO THE CITY; ADDING

VARIOUS DEFINITIONS; REQUIRING A TREE

INVENTORY AND TREE PRESERVATION PLAN

F OR NEW SUBDIVISIONS; PROHIBITING

AND REQUIRING
RESTRICTIVE AND PROTECTIVE COVENANTS

TO MITIGATE ISSUES BETWEEN PROPOSED 

SUBDIVISIONS AND EXISTING, DEVELOPED

SUBDIVISIONS.

WHEREAS, the Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-413) grants class

cities the authority to regulate the subdivision of land into lots and blocks for

development of residential, commercial, and industrial subdivisions; and

WHEREAS, the subdivision regulations were last adopted on March 19, 1979;



WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to revise the existing subdivision

regulations to provide standards by which proposed subdivisions can be analyzed in their

relationship to existing, adjacent subdivisions dealing with lot sizes, structure sizes,

restrictive and protective covenants, landscape plant materials suited to the City, 

frontage lots, landscaped screening strips and/or fences and walls, etc. in Chapter 24

(subdivision regulations) of the Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of these regulations to encourage the preservation of

existing trees, requiring landscaped screening strips and/or fences and walls for double- 

frontage lots, requiring a tree inventory and preservation plan, prohibiting

suggesting landscape planting materials suited to the City, and requiring restrictive and

protective covenants to mitigate various issues between proposed subdivisions and

existing, developed subdivisions; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed important for Texarkana, subdivision

regulations remain up to date with current land use trends and to comply with the

Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated so as not to pose an impediment to development of

residential, commercial, and industrial subdivisions within the City of Texarkana,

Arkansas; and

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the Planning Commission has approved said

subdivision regulations text amendments and recommended that the Board of Directors

approve the ordinance adopting said regulations;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas that the attached regulations governing the subdivision of land 

within the City, attached hereto and made parts hereof, are hereby adopted by reference.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of October, 2005.



ATTEST:

Patti Scott City Clerk :3
APPR ED:

Ci y Attorney
2 3

Horace G. Shipp, ayor



 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 
F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 
D A T E :  March 7, 2023 
S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for March 20, 2023 – Ordinance to  delete 

Ordinance L-227.   

REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 

Upon request to the Planning Commission by City Manager, Jay Ellington, to consider 
requiring tree planting and lighting for new subdivisions, the Planning Commission began 
consideration of revisions to the Subdivision Chapter 24 of the Texarkana Municipal 
Code.  Beginning in May 2022, and continually thereafter, the Commission was 
presented with information on Chapter 24, the subdivision chapter.  In the process or 
researching the regulations, it was uncovered that a suspension of L-227, an ordinance 
adopted in October of 2005, had been suspended by Ordinance L-255, in May of 2006 
for further study.  After many months of workshops and study of the subdivision text, the 
Planning Commission concluded Ordinance L-227 should be deleted in its entirety.     

  
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE 
STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – 
“All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through 
the following procedure for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, 
ordinances, and regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city, at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and 
proposed ordinance and regulations may be recommended as presented, or 
in modified form, by a majority vote of the entire commission.   
 

 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and 
regulations, the commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended 
ordinances of and regulations to the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 
 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended 
ordinances and regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, 
or, by a majority vote of the entire membership, may, by ordinance or 
resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances or regulations 
submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and 
resolutions by a vote of a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted plans, ordinances, 
and regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall 
file, with the county recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is 
being exercised such plans, ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the 
territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, January 29, 2023, edition of 
the Texarkana Gazette. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 

 

The Planning Commission met on February 13, 2023, to review this request.  On a motion to 
approve by Mr. Adger Smith, seconded by Mr. Boots Thomas, the motion passed.  A roll call 
vote was 5-0 as two commissioners were absent.    
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Absent 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Absent 
Randall Hickerson Yes 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
Mike Jones                             Yes 

 

 
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  
To adopt an ordinance that would delete Ordinance L-227.  The Arkansas Code of 1987 
Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three times before adoption.  These three 
readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the second and third subsequent meetings 
after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 24 – Subdivisions of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances, to set limits on road 

guarantee renewals. (This item was TABLED 03/06/2023) (PWD-

Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

AGENDA DATE: 03/06/2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance that sets limits on road guarantee renewals.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None requested. 

SUMMARY: (This item was TABLED 03/06/2023 – BOD wanted a separate 

ordinance for each request) 

 

In order to bring to completeness subdivision road projects in a 

reasonable time it has become necessary to set a limit on renewals for 

road construction guarantee extensions.         

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance.   

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, regulations for road completions. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 24-51 OF 

THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, TO SET LIMITS ON ROAD 

GUARANTEE RENEWALS AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recently began considering revisions to the 

Subdivision Chapter of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances (the “Code”); 

and 

WHEREAS, the Commission held workshops beginning in May 2022, until 

February 2023, and determined that extensions to road guarantees needed to be limited to 

one year from the original contract in order to complete road projects in a reasonable time; 

and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 13, 2023, wherein the 

Commission voted 5-0 with two commissioners absent to set a limit on road guarantee 

renewals;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that Section 24-51(a)(1) of the Code is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 

(1) Performance bond.  File with the city a bond executed by a surety 

company holding a license to do business in the State of Arkansas, and 

acceptable to the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, on a form provided by 

the city, in the full amount necessary for the completion of the 

improvements required by this chapter;  If an extension to the 

performance bond becomes necessary due to extreme weather or supply 

shortages, it shall not go longer than one extension for one year after the 

due date of the original bond, or, if at the time of this amendment an 

extension is active, no longer than one year from the adoption of this 

amendment; 



 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

                Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, Interim City Attorney 

 

 



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-02-09 13:45:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 24-51. Guarantee of performance. 

(a) Construction of improvements before final plat approval. No final plat shall be approved by the Planning 
Commission of Texarkana, Arkansas until the improvements required by this chapter are constructed in a 
satisfactory manner and approved by the director of public works. In lieu of such construction, the 
commission may grant final approval prior to completion of improvements provided the subdivider fulfills 
one of the following:  

(1) Performance bond. File with the city a bond executed by a surety company holding a license to do 
business in the State of Arkansas, and acceptable to the City of Texarkana, Arkansas on a form 
approved by the city, in the full amount necessary for the completion of the improvements required by 
this chapter;  

(2) Letter of commitment. File with the city an irrevocable letter of commitment executed by a bank or a 
savings and loan institution that is acceptable to the city in an amount equal to the costs of 
improvements required by this chapter; or  

(3) Trustee agreement. Place on deposit in a bank or trust company a trust agreement in the name of the 
city and approved by the city, in a trust account, a sum of money equal to the estimated cost of 
improvements required by this chapter. Selection of the trustee shall be subject to approval by the city 
and the trust agreement shall be executed on a form approved by the city. Periodic withdrawals may 
be made from the trust account for a progress payment of installation costs. The amount of 
withdrawals shall be based upon progress work estimates approved by the public works director.  

(b) Inspection. If one of the three (3) of the aforesaid securities is filed by the subdivider, the city engineer shall 
inspect the construction of improvements while in progress, and shall inspect such improvements upon 
completion of construction. After final inspection, he shall notify the subdivider and the director of public 
works of the improvements' satisfactory completion.  

Note:  amendment to Sec. 24-51 (a) if an extension to the performance bond becomes necessary   

due to extreme weather or supply shortages, it shall not go longer than one extension for one   

year after the due date of the original bond, or, if at the time of this amendment an extension is  

active, no longer than one year from the adoption of this amendment.  

 

(Ord. No. H-534, Art. 3, § 1, 3-19-79) 

 



 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 
F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 
D A T E :  March 7, 2023 
S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for March 20, 2023 – Ordinance to 

establish limits to road guarantee renewals.   

REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 

Upon request to the Planning Commission by City Manager, Jay Ellington, to consider 
requiring tree planting and lighting for new subdivisions, the Planning Commission began 
consideration of revisions to the Subdivision Chapter 24 of the Texarkana Municipal 
Code.  Beginning in May 2022, and continually thereafter, until February of 2023 the 
Commission was presented with information on Chapter 24, the subdivision chapter.  A 
recommendation to come out of that process is to limit extensions to road guarantees to 
go no more than one additional year from the original contract.      

  
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE 
STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – 
“All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through 
the following procedure for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, 
ordinances, and regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city, at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and 
proposed ordinance and regulations may be recommended as presented, or 
in modified form, by a majority vote of the entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and 
regulations, the commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended 
ordinances of and regulations to the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 

 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended 
ordinances and regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, 
or, by a majority vote of the entire membership, may, by ordinance or 
resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances or regulations 
submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and 
resolutions by a vote of a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted plans, ordinances, 
and regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall 
file, with the county recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is 
being exercised such plans, ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the 
territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, January 29, 2023, edition of 
the Texarkana Gazette. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 

 

The Planning Commission met on February 13, 2023, to review this request.  On a motion to 
approve by Mr. Adger Smith, seconded by Mr. Boots Thomas, the motion passed.  A roll call 
vote was 5-0 as two commissioners were absent.    
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Absent 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Absent 
Randall Hickerson Yes 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
Mike Jones                             Yes 

 

 
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  
To adopt an ordinance that would set a limit on road guarantee renewals.  The Arkansas Code 
of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three times before adoption.  These 
three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the second and third subsequent 
meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to purchase desktop 

computers, laptop computers, and their necessary accessories to be 

utilized by various departments of the City of Texarkana Arkansas. 

(TWU-IT) Information Technology Director Brandon Uselton 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: March 20, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities – Information Technology 

PREPARED BY: Brandon Uselton, IT Director 

REQUEST: Authorizing the City Manager to purchase desktop computers, laptop 

computers, and their necessary accessories  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes. Quote expires on April 5th, 2023 

SUMMARY: Information Technology is requesting an order of desktop computers, 

laptop computers, and their necessary accessories, presented by Dell of 

Round Rock, Texas, be accepted, authorizing the City Manager to 

purchase off the State of Texas DIR Contract (DIR-TSO-3763). The 

total cost for the purchase shall not exceed forty-three thousand seven 

hundred forty-four dollars and seven cents ($43,744.07).  

 

The Information Technology Department is requesting this purchase to 

replace computer hardware that has reached its end of life, or will reach 

its end of life in FY23, and is no longer supported under warranty. Staff 

recommends approval.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $43,744.07 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $45,000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

None 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

IT Staff recommends approval.  

EXHIBITS: Ordinance and Exhibit “A” Dell Quote 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING COMPETITIVE 

BIDDING; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT TO 

PURCHASE DESKTOP COMPUTERS, LAPTOP 

COMPUTERS, AND THEIR NECESSARY 

ACCESSORIES; FOR DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Information Technology Division of Texarkana Water Utilities 

(TWU) wishes to replace current computer hardware for the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

that has reached its end of life or will reach its end of life in FY23, and is no longer 

supported under warranty; and  

WHEREAS, TWU has obtained a proposal through the Texas Department of 

Information Resources (DIR) from Dell Technologies in the amount of $43,744.07; and  

WHEREAS, Dell Technologies has consistently provided quality equipment and 

service; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-47-138, the Board of Directors may 

waive the requirements of competitive bidding in exceptional situations where competitive 

bidding is not feasible; and 

 WHEREAS, it is not feasible or practicable to engage in competitive bidding 

because Dell Technologies is considered a sole source; and  

WHEREAS, in consideration of and for the reasons set forth above, TWU does 

request that any competitive bidding practices otherwise required by applicable statue and 

ordinance be waived as permitted by Ark. Code Ann. § 14-47-138 and § 2-27 of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances and the purchase of the items described above 

for the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, be approved;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 



Section 1: The competitive bidding practices contemplated by applicable law 

and ordinance are waived and the City Manager is authorized to enter into any agreement 

reasonably necessary to carry out the purchase of the computer hardware described herein 

on the terms and conditions set out above. 

Section 2:  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health, and safety (including the need to commence prompt acquisition and installation of 

said needed computer hardware), and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this 

emergency clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be 

in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of March, 2023.   

 

       _____________________________ 

                 Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 


















	Top
	1.	Comp Plan Presentation
	2.	Minutes
	item_03202023_ccd_minutes
	item_2_03062023_minutes

	3.	City Attorney agreement
	item_03202023_bod_city attorney
	Item 3
	item_03202023_bod_City Attorney Agreement_Josh Potter

	4.	Engineering Contract to A.L. Franks Engineering for the design of County Avenue Road Improvements.
	A.L. Franks Engineering Contract - County Avenue Rehab Project
	Item 4
	Feb 2023 Pictures
	Signed WO. TXK-01-23

	5.	Construction Contract with Francis Excavating, LLC for Sanderson Ln, Jefferson Ave, Stallion Dr and Boyd Rd Rehabilitation Projects.
	Sanderson Lane, Jefferson Ave, Stallion Dr and Boyd Rd Agenda
	Item 5
	Bid Recommendation & Tabulation
	sign-in sheet

	6.	Crossties agreement
	item_03202023_admin_crossties agreement
	Item 6 Crossties
	item_6_contract

	7.	1894 agreement
	item_7_03202023_admin_1894 agreement
	Item 7 1894
	item_7_1894 & heritage_contract

	8.	delete_ordinance_L-227
	item_8_03202023_pwd_delete obsolete ordinance
	Item 8
	Ord L255
	Ord L227
	Memo for deletion of Ordinance L-227

	9.	amendments for road guarantee renewals
	item_9_03202023_pwd_amendments to Subdivision chapter 24
	Item 9
	Sec._24_51.___Guarantee_of_performance
	Memo for limiting road guarantee extentions

	10.	IT computer purchase
	item_03202023_twu-it_PC Order Agenda Form
	Item 10
	item_03202023_twu-it_Exhibit A Dell Computer Quote

	Bottom

